
           

MEETING AGENDA
    

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION

February 19, 2015; 6:30 p.m.
JUANITA POHL CENTER
8513 SW TUALATIN RD
TUALATIN, OR 97062

                           

 

             

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
Members: Alan Aplin (Chair), Bill Beers, Jeff DeHaan, Cameron Grile, Nic
Herriges, Adam Butts and Jan Giunta
Staff: Aquilla Hurd-Ravich, Planning Manager; Cindy Hahn, Associate Planner

 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
 

A.   Approval of the January 15, 2015 TPC Minutes.
 

3. COMMUNICATION FROM THE PUBLIC (NOT ON THE AGENDA)
Limited to 3 minutes

 

4. ACTION ITEMS
 

A.   2014 Annual Report of the Tualatin Planning Commission
 

B.   Consideration to Amend the Tualatin Development Code (TDC) Chapters 31, 60, 61,
64 and a new Chapter 80 to establish reasonable time, place and manner regulations
for marijuana facilities. Plan Text Amendment 15-01 is a legislative matter.

 

5. COMMUNICATION FROM CITY STAFF
 

6. FUTURE ACTION ITEMS
 

7. ANNOUNCEMENTS/PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION
 

8. ADJOURNMENT
 

  



TO: Tualatin Planning Commissioners

FROM: Lynette Sanford, Office Coordinator

DATE: 02/19/2015

SUBJECT: Approval of the January 15, 2015 TPC Minutes.

ISSUE BEFORE TPC:

Attachments: TPC Minutes 1.15.15



 
UNOFFICIAL 

 

 
 

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION     -                     MINUTES OF January 15, 2015 

TPC MEMBERS PRESENT:              STAFF PRESENT 
Alan Aplin                                                                                                 Aquilla Hurd-Ravich 
Adam Butts                   Clare Fuchs                                                                                          
Bill Beers             Lynette Sanford 
Cameron Grile          
Jan Giunta 
 
TPC MEMBER ABSENT: Nic Herriges, Jeff DeHaan 
 
GUESTS:   Alice Cannon, Council President Monique Beikman 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 
 

Alan Aplin, Chair, called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm; roll call was taken.  
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 

Mr. Aplin asked for review and approval of the November 20, 2014 and December 18, 
2014 TPC minutes. Mr. Beers stated that on the November 20th minutes, he did have a 
couple of corrections. He said there is a discrepancy in what was stated versus what 
was presented regarding the Capital Improvement Plan. The amount of unfunded 
projects should be listed as $857,768,000 as stated in the unfunded project list handout.  
Mr. Beers noted a minor edit resulting in the following correction: She also noted the 
entire CIP will be up on our web site if they have specific questions 
 
Ms. Giunta asked that the December 18th minutes reflect her note that she is cautious 
moving forward with the Basalt Creek plan due to questions about the project being 
financially viable. 
 
MOTION by Beers SECONDED by Butts to approve the November 20, 2014 and 
December 18, 2014 minutes with the corrections as stated.  MOTION PASSED 5-0.  
 

3. COMMUNICATION FROM THE PUBLIC (NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
  

None. 
 

4. ACTION ITEMS: 
 

 These minutes are not verbatim. The meeting was recorded, and copies of the recording are 
retained for a period of one year from the date of the meeting and are available upon request. 



TPC MEETING - Minutes for January 15, 2015 Page 2 
 

A. Elect a Chair and Vice Chair to Represent the Tualatin Planning Commission. 
 

Mr. Aplin asked the Commission members if they would like to represent the 
Planning Commission as Chair or Vice Chair. It was agreed among the Commission 
members to retain Alan Aplin as the chair and Bill Beers as the Vice Chair for 2015.  
 

B. PUBLIC HEARING: Sign Variance Application; LA Fitness; 7405 SW Nyberg 
Street 
 
Mr. Aplin read the script regarding quasi-judicial hearings. Clare Fuchs, Senior 
Planner, presented the staff report for a sign variance request from LA Fitness at 
Nyberg Rivers, which included a PowerPoint presentation. If approved, the sign 
variance would allow two wall signs with taller letters; increased sign face height, 
and increased area from the maximum allowed in the Office Commercial (CO) 
Planning District.  
 
Ms. Fuchs went through the slides which detailed the vicinity map and the two 
zoning districts involved - Office Commercial (CO) and Central Commercial (CC). In 
the CO planning district, the height of a sign face may be no higher than three feet 
and no letter or number should be higher than two feet with the area of no more than 
40 square feet. In the CC district, the height of the sign can be no higher than four 
feet and a sign area of up to 150 square feet is allowed.  This variance requests four 
feet high letters, up to a 5.4 foot sign face height, at 158 square feet in area for each 
sign.  A total of three of these signs are requested for a combined total of 474 
square feet of signage.   
 
Ms. Fuchs noted that the variance criteria that the City needed to concentrate on 
was exceptional or extraordinary conditions related to this site. Staff has determined 
that this site is unique because it’s between I-5 and the Tualatin River which the 
applicant has no control over, the hardship was not caused by the applicant, and the 
variance minimum is necessary to alleviate the hardship. The request is also 
proportional to the building and the variance will help LA Fitness be a successful 
venture in our community.  
 
Ms. Fuchs added that there are four decision alternatives. Approve, approve with 
amendments, request for applicant to modify, or to deny the application. Mr. Aplin 
asked if the CO zoning was a remnant of what was previously at this site. Ms. Fuchs 
answered that this site is a unique situation because it’s it the corner. Ms. Giunta 
asked why the zoning was not previously changed. Ms. Hurd- Ravich stated that it 
didn’t seem reasonable to go through a Plan Map Amendment because the use is 
allowed.  Mr. Aplin asked if any other signs were intended for this business. Ms. 
Fuchs responded that LA Fitness is already advertised on the pylons signs located 
at Nyberg Rd and the freeway, so this is all they are requesting at this time.   
 
Christe White; Radler, White, Parks, and Alexander, 111 SW Columbia, Suite 1100, 
Portland, OR 

 



TPC MEETING - Minutes for January 15, 2015 Page 3 
 

 
Christe White, an Attorney representing LA Fitness, stated that one of the reasons 
for the variance is the zoning change between CC and CO, which has different 
underlying sign codes. Ms. White added that Cabela’s has already been approved 
for a sign variance because of its location on the site. LA Fitness is located behind 
Cabela’s, over 500 feet from Nyberg Rd. Ms. White presented a PowerPoint 
presentation that showed the proportions of the sign based on the size of the 
building wall and that the proposed letters are proportional and consistent with the 
immediate neighbors. Ms. Giunta asked if the sign would be back lit. Ms. White 
replied that it will be lit with a soft white light, similar to Cabela’s sign, with no moving 
parts and wall mounted. Mr. Beers asked if it was to be individual letters or if there 
will be a raceway behind it.  Ms. Fuchs replied they will be individual letters. Mr. 
Grile asked the height of the Cabela’s lettering. Ms. Fuchs responded that the 
Cabela’s sign was 8 feet in height, so this will be roughly half the size. Ms. White 
added that a Neighborhood Developer meeting was held and that no one from the 
public attended. There were also no comments received during the comment period.   
 
MOTION by Beers SECONDED by Butts to approve the Sign Variance  (SVAR-15-
01) for LA Fitness. MOTION PASSED 5-0.  
 

5. COMMUNICATION FROM CITY STAFF 
 
A. Update on the Regulation of Marijuana Facilities 

 
Ms. Hurd-Ravich presented the staff report on the regulation of marijuana facilities. 
Staff is providing information on regulating both recreational and medical marijuana 
facilities with the City to prepare the Planning Commission for review of a Plan Text 
Amendment (PTA) at the February meeting. To assist the conversation, staff will 
provide information on ballet Measure 91 (recreational marijuana) and other Oregon 
City and County regulations for both types of facilities. This information will be taken 
to City Council on February 23rd. Ms. Hurd-Ravich is requesting feedback and 
comments from the Commission members. This will be an action item in February 
for a recommendation on code language.  
 
Ms. Hurd-Ravich stated that there are two parts to marijuana dispensaries: Medical 
and recreational. There is a moratorium on medical marijuana that will end on May 
1st.  Ms. Hurd-Ravich stated that we must have code in place and that an ordinance 
be adopted by March 31, 2015 so that it will become effective before the City-wide 
moratorium expires. The City is looking at putting similar regulations in place for 
recreational marijuana which will go into effect January, 2016. Ms. Giunta stated that 
since the legislature hasn’t decided whether they will be treating these together, 
what legal basis Tualatin has to treat medical and recreational regulations together. 
Ms. Hurd-Ravich said the reason they have decided to treat these together is 
because they looked at other cities and jurisdictions and some of them are 
incorporating one set of regulations. Tualatin took this approach after meeting with 
the City Attorney and City Manager and it came down to ease of administering and 

 



TPC MEETING - Minutes for January 15, 2015 Page 4 
 

regulating without the distinction of which type they are. Ms. Giunta asked if they 
foresee any problems with moving ahead with this approach if the legislature 
decides to keep them separate. Ms. Hurd-Ravich responded that she did not see an 
impediment, but they will keep watching the legislative decision.  Alice Cannon, 
Assistant City Manager, responded that she didn’t see any impediments to keeping 
them together and it was decided that it would be easier for customers to have one 
set of rules and easier for the City to track. Ms. Cannon stated that as staff looked at 
the land uses, it seemed intuitive to put them together.  
 
Ms. Hurd-Ravich continued with the PowerPoint presentation which detailed the 
voting results. With nearly 10,000 votes, the measure was passed by a 3% margin. 
Voters in the northeast and southwest parts of Tualatin opposed the measure. Ms. 
Hurd-Ravich stated that the considerations to be addressed in draft regulations are 
the extent of time, place and manner restrictions, and grow site regulation. Ms. 
Hurd-Ravich added that there have been inquiries about using our industrial space 
as grow sites for growing and/or packaging marijuana.  
 
Ms.Hurd-Ravich stated that the current state regulations for medical marijuana 
include: 

• 1,000 foot buffer from schools and other facilities 
• No co-location with a grow site 
• No mobile service 
• Restricted to commercial, industrial, mixed use or agricultural districts. , no 

mobile service with regulations.  
 

For recreational marijuana: 
• Local jurisdictions may adopt time, place and manner restrictions on 

“nuisance aspects” 
• Prohibits “noisy, lewd, disorderly, or insanitary” facilities.  

 
Ms. Hurd-Ravich continued to present the maps on the slides which showed buffers 
around schools, parks, residential districts, and parks. Ms. Giunta asked why the 
park in Pony Ridge wasn’t represented. Ms. Hurd-Ravich responded that it must 
have been missed and will look into it.  
 
Ms. Hurd-Ravich noted that other jurisdictions have put in place regulations that limit 
hours of operation, number of facilities, and size of facilities. They prohibit locations 
in the downtown area, co-location with marijuana social or smoking clubs, security 
bars on windows and doors, and outdoor storage of merchandise, plants or other 
materials. Some of the requirements other jurisdictions put in place are locations in a 
permanent building, clear visibility of off-street parking, notification to neighboring 
businesses or residents, and the requirement of a Conditional Use permit to operate. 
Mr. Beers asked the rationale behind prohibiting security bars on windows and 
doors. Ms. Hurd-Ravich responded that it is more of an aesthetic design feature than 
security feature.  
 

 



TPC MEETING - Minutes for January 15, 2015 Page 5 
 

Ms. Hurd-Ravich continued with the grow site regulations which may require home 
grow sites to have property line setbacks. For commercial and industrial grow sites, 
distance regulations may be required between grow sites, air filtration and odor 
reduction systems, screening of outdoor storage areas, and a Conditional Use 
permit to operate. Ms. Giunta brought up the concern over the use of property lines 
in buildings that have other tenants. There is a likelihood in industrial buildings that 
there will be various tenants and wondering if they should add leasehold/abutting 
wall to the property descriptions. Ms. Hurd-Ravich stated that she will note that.  
 
Ms. Hurd-Ravich added that the next steps include bringing the draft code back to 
the Planning Commission in February. In March, there will be a public hearing and 
ordinance adoption. In May, the ordinance will be in effect.  
 
Mr. Aplin stated that there should be language regarding the focus on growers and 
sellers and also verbiage addressing cooking and edibles.  Ms. Hurd-Ravich 
suggested a third category pertaining to this, which would include processing. Ms. 
Hurd-Ravich added that if the City doesn’t allow dispensaries under the recreational 
category, the ramifications include not being able to collect taxes or revenue 
generated through them. Council President Beikman added that the only way we 
can ban recreational is through a local initiative.  Ms. Giunta asked if staff is 
recommending a ban from parks and schools. Ms. Hurd-Ravich said that staff is in 
the discussion phase at this point, but the state has mandated 1,000 foot radius ban. 
Ms. Giunta recommended a 3,000 foot radius around schools and parks, to ban from 
the downtown area, and a Conditional Use Permit be required for all categories. Mr. 
Beers suggested allowing one facility of each (dispensary, grow sites, and edibles) 
medical and recreational. Mr. Grile brought up a distance restriction around grow 
sites and to find a way to regulate odor from all sites. Mr. Aplin agreed that it should 
be banned around schools and parks and away from the downtown area.  Mr. Beers 
added that a buffer at 1,000 feet from all residential districts should be considered 
and the City should discuss possible impacts to Tigard. Mr. Beers added that 
language needs to be added to exclude the downtown area. Mr. Beers asked about 
the regulations regarding odor at the Grimm’s composting site.  Ms. Hurd-Ravich 
responded that DEQ has regulations they have to comply with and this would also 
pertain to a grow site or retail site where odor is present. Ms. Hurd-Ravich thanked 
the Commission members for their comments and will update the Council on their 
recommendations.  
 

6.     FUTURE ACTION ITEMS 
 
Ms.Hurd-Ravich stated that in February, the Planning Commission annual report will be 
brought before them. The code for dispensaries will be back for a recommendation, 
where the Commission members have the opportunity to make changes, if necessary.  
Ms. Giunta stated that in the annual report, she would like to see an entire section focus 
on the various efforts and achievements involving the Citizen Involvement 
Organizations and Tualatin Tomorrow, as well as any other City wide citizen 
involvement efforts.   

 



TPC MEETING - Minutes for January 15, 2015 Page 6 
 

  
7.      ANNOUNCEMENTS/PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 

 
          None.   

 
8.       ADJOURNMENT 
 

MOTION by Beers SECONDED by Aplin to adjourn the meeting at 7:36 pm. MOTION 
PASSED 5-0. 
 
 
_______________________________ Lynette Sanford, Office Coordinator 
 
 
 

 



TO: Tualatin Planning Commissioners

FROM: Aquilla Hurd-Ravich, Planning Manager

DATE: 02/19/2015

SUBJECT: 2014 Annual Report of the Tualatin Planning Commission

ISSUE BEFORE TPC:
Consideration of the 2014 Tualatin Planning Commission Annual Report and a recommendation
that the City Council accept the report. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that TPC accept the report and recommend that Council also accept the
report at their regularly scheduled meeting on March 23, 2015. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
This is not a public hearing

Not later than April 1 of each year, commencing with the year 1977, the commission shall
file with the City Council its annual report of the activities of the Commission.

The annual report shall include a survey and report of the activities by the Commission
during the preceding year, in addition to specific recommendations to the City Council not
otherwise requested by the City Council, relating to the planning process, plan
implementation measures within the City, or future activities of the Commission.

The report may include activities of the Commission. The report may include any other
matters deemed appropriate by the Commission for recommendation and advice to the
Council.

The Tualatin Municipal Code 11-1 contains the provisions for the functions and activities of
Tualatin Planning Commission (TPC).

TPC is the official Commission for Citizen Involvement in accordance with Statewide Land
Use Planning Goal 1, Citizen Involvement.

TPC reviewed one Plan Text Amendment and one Plan Map Amendment during 2014.

The TPC approved one Sign Variance and one height Variance.

There are no criteria applied to acceptance of the annual report.



OUTCOMES OF DECISION:
Planning Commission acceptance of the Annual Report will result in the following: 

A recommendation to Council to accept the report

Compliance with Section 11-1-080 of the Tualatin Municipal Code
If the Planning Commission does not accept the Annual Report the following outcomes will
result: 

A recommendation that Council not accept the report

Non compliance with Section 11-1-080 of the Tualatin Municipal Code

ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION:
Direct staff to amend the annual report based on recommendations from the Planning
Commission.

Continue the discussion and return to the matter at a later date.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
Funds are budgeted in the Planning Division for preparation of the Annual Report of the Tualatin
Planning Commission.

Attachments: 101. Tualatin Planning Commission 2014 Annual Report



 
 
 
 

2014 ANNUAL REPORT  
 

TUALATIN PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

February 19, 2015 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

      Planning Commissioners: 
 

Alan Aplin, Chair 
Bill Beers, Vice Chair 

Adam Butts 
Jeff DeHaan 
Nic Herriges 

Cameron Grile 
Jan Giunta 

 

 
 



 
 
 

2014 ANNUAL REPORT OF THE TUALATIN 
 PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Tualatin Planning Commission, formerly the Tualatin Planning Advisory Committee 
established, was established on July 26, 1976 (Ord. 1339-12 and Ord. 342-76).  The 
Planning Commission’s membership, organization and duties are prescribed in Tualatin 
Municipal Code Chapter 11-1.  The Planning Commission is the official Committee for 
Citizen Involvement in accordance with Statewide Land Use Planning Goal 1, Citizen 
Involvement.  This annual report covers activities conducted by the Planning 
Commission in 2014. 
 
This report will address a section of the Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 11-1. 
 

 11-1-080:  Not later than April 1 of each year, the Commission shall file its 
annual report of the activities of the Commission with the City Council.  The 
annual report shall include a survey and report of the activities of the 
committee during the preceding year, in addition to specific recommendations 
to the City Council not otherwise requested by the City Council, relating to the 
planning process, plan implementation measures within the City, or the future 
activities of the Committee.  The report may include any other matters 
deemed appropriate by the Committee for recommendation and advice to the 
Council. 

 
 
CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT AND INPUT 
 
The Planning Commission is the official Committee to fulfill Goal 1: Citizen Involvement 
of Oregon’s statewide land use planning program.  The purpose of Goal 1 is to develop 
a citizen involvement program that insures the opportunity for citizens to be involved in 
all phases of the land use planning process.   
 
Goal 1 is specific to land use and involving citizens in land use making decisions.  The 
Planning Commission serves two functions in Tualatin’s land use planning program.  
Their first and original function is to serve as an advisory committee to the City Council 
by reviewing and making recommendations on comprehensive plan amendments.  Plan 
amendments implement policy direction and are essentially legislative decisions.  The 
second function of the Planning Commission, a more recent addition, is decision making 
authority over a specified set of quasi-judicial land use decisions.  In other words, the 
Planning Commission has the authority to approve or deny projects tied to specific 
properties.   
 



2014 TPC Annual Report 
February 19, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
Goal 1 allows for varying degrees of citizen involvement that is appropriate to the scale 
of the planning effort.  For example in 2014 the Planning Commission recommended 
approval of Plan Text Amendment (PTA) 14-01 that implemented Linking Tualatin a city 
wide effort that was part of the City’s Year of Transportation efforts.  In this instance 
there were Task Force meetings, working group meetings and an intensive three day 
workshop to gather public input.  Staff consistently updated the Planning Commission 
and asked for feedback on the plan over the course of two years.  The level of effort 
was warranted because the changes affected multiple properties in different Planning 
Districts across the City. 
 
In contrast, a property owner requested a Plan Map Amendment (PMA) 14-01 to 
several contiguous properties changing the designation from Recreational Commercial 
(CR) and General Commercial (CG) to High Density Residential (RH).  In this case, 
minimal public involvement was warranted due to the limited nature of the proposed 
change.  The applicants held a neighborhood developer meeting where property owners 
and citizens within 1,000 feet of the property were invited to meet the developer and 
discuss the proposal, identify any impacts and resolve and potential conflicts.   
 
In both cases, citizens had a chance make comments either in writing or verbally at the 
public meeting prior to the Planning Commission making a recommendation to the City 
Council.  
 
Oregon state law sets minimum notification standards for quasi-judicial decisions such 
as the two variances considered by the Planning Commission in 2014.   Applicants for 
the variances were required to host neighborhood developer meetings and staff notified 
property owners within 1,000 feet of a public hearing at the Planning Commission 20 
days in advance of the meeting.  Anyone who submitted comments or testified during 
the public hearing was then notified of the decision and given 14 calendar days to file an 
appeal to City Council to review the decision.   
 
All Planning Commission meetings regardless of the agenda items are published on the 
City website and notices of the meetings are posted in two different locations in City 
buildings.   
 
Additionally, the Community Development staff meets with the Citizen Involvement 
Organization Land Use Officers on a quarterly basis or as topics arise.  The purpose of 
the meetings is to provide updates on land use items such as projects under 
construction, upcoming decisions and long range planning.  These meetings are held 
directly before the Planning Commission meetings, and they provide a forum for CIO 
officers to ask questions and get more information about community development 
processes.  
 
 



2014 TPC Annual Report 
February 19, 2015 
Page 3 
 
 

 
 

2014 Tualatin Planning Commissioners Alan Aplin Chair, Bill Beers Vice Chair, Adam 
Butts, Jeff DeHaan, Nic Herriges, Cameron Grile, Jan Giunta 

 
 
 
COMMUICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC NOT ON A AGENDA 
 
At each meeting, there is an allotted time for the public to make comments about any 
topic not related to an agenda item.  This opportunity has given members of the public a 
time to ask TPC to consider other community concerns.   
 
Two topics were presented by citizens in 2014:  
 
• The CCIO brought forward zoning and land use issues in Oak Tree Business Park 

also known as Blocks 28 and 29 of the Central Urban Renewal District. 
 

• Members of a newly formed City Task Force on Aging introduced themselves and 
announced the task force formation.  Their purpose in talking to the Planning 
Commission was to make them aware of this new group and to ask that needs of 
an aging population be considered when making decisions about land use and 
transportation issues. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT 



2014 TPC Annual Report 
February 19, 2015 
Page 4 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION ITEMS 
 
In January 2012, the City Council changed the Tualatin Planning Advisory Committee to 
the Tualatin Planning Commission.  The Planning Commission met for the first time in 
February 2012 and has purview over certain quasi-judicial land use applications 
including: 
 

• Industrial Master Plans • Variance 
• Reinstatement of Use • Transitional Use Permit 
• Sign Variance  

 
 
The Planning Commission retains the duties of the Advisory Committee, which is to 
make recommendations to City Council on comprehensive plan amendments including 
map and text changes.  The Planning Commission reviewed and decided on two quasi-
judicial decisions and made recommendations on two comprehensive plan amendments 
in 2014.  They met a total of nine times during the calendar year.  Three meetings were 
cancelled due to a lack of agenda items.   
 
PTA-14-01 Amending Chapters 60, 61, and 62 of the Tualatin Development Code– 
Amendment to allow small-scale mixed uses and modifications to Chapters 34 and 69 
to implement recommendations from Linking Tualatin. Recommended Approval 6-0. 
 
PMA-14-01 Amending Community Plan Map 9-1 – Amendment to change the 
designation of two tax lots totaling 9.41 acres from General Commercial and 
Recreational Commercial to High Density Residential located at 17865 SW Pacific 
Highway.  Recommended Approval 6-0. 
 
VAR-14-01 For a Wireless Communication Facility – Request to allow an increase in 
height above the maximum allowed for a Verizon Wireless Communication Facility in 
the Institutional (IN) Planning District.  Approved 6-0.  
 
SVAR-14-01 Cabela’s Sign Variance – Request to allow Cabela’s store in the Office 
Commercial (CO) and Central Commercial (CC) Planning district to have two signs that 
exceeded the allowed maximum standards in the Planning Districts.  Approved 6-0.  
 
 
STAFF UPDATES TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION  
 
Staff presented several topics for discussion including:  

• The SW Corridor Transit Alignment Options and Draft Recommendations. 
 

• Basalt Creek Concept Plan including a review of the Partnering Agreement, 
Public Involvement Plan, Draft Guiding Principles and Existing Conditions 
Report.  Additionally two presentations were made to update the Commission on 
project status and discussions had by Council at work sessions.  



2014 TPC Annual Report 
February 19, 2015 
Page 5 
 
 

 
• A review and update of Metro’s Climate Smart Communities Project. 

 
• TriMet staff presented an update on the agency’s Service Enhancement Plan. 

 
• The City of Tualatin’s 2016-2020 Capital Improvement Plan. 

 
 

COMMISSIONER TRAININGS 
 
• Mr. Butts attended a Planning Commissioner Training hosted by the Oregon City 

Planning Directors Association in September.  
 
 
 



TO: Tualatin Planning Commissioners

THROUGH: Aquilla Hurd-Ravich, Planning Manager

FROM: Cindy Hahn, Associate Planner

DATE: 02/19/2015

SUBJECT: Consideration to Amend the Tualatin Development Code (TDC) Chapters 31, 60,
61, 64 and a new Chapter 80 to establish reasonable time, place and manner
regulations for marijuana facilities. Plan Text Amendment 15-01 is a legislative
matter.

ISSUE BEFORE TPC:
Planning Commission consideration of a Plan Text Amendment to establish reasonable time, place and manner
regulations for marijuana facilities by adding a new Chapter 80 Marijuana Facilities and Related
Regulations, adding definitions to Chapter 31 General Provisions, and adding marijuana facilities as
allowed uses to Chapter 60 Light Manufacturing, Chapter 61 General Manufacturing, and 
Chapter 64 Manufacturing Business Park of the Tualatin Development Code. Staff is seeking a
recommendation from the Planning Commission to the City Council on the draft code language for the proposed
amendment.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the Planning Commission consider the staff report, draft language, and analysis and findings,
and make a recommendation to the City Council.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Regulation of marijuana facilities in the State of Oregon has a legislative history: 

November 1998 - Ballot Measure 67, the Oregon Medical Marijuana Act, was approved by Oregon voters.

August 2013 - The Oregon Heath Authority developed a process to register medical marijuana dispensaries
under HB 3460. 

March 2014 - Senate Bill 1531 authorized local governments to adopt reasonable regulations regarding the
hours of operation, location, and manner in which medical marijuana dispensaries are operated. Additionally,
jurisdictions were allowed to enact a moratorium on dispensaries set to expire May 1, 2015.

April 2014 - The City of Tualatin adopted Ordinance No. 1373-14 which placed a moratorium on medical
marijuana facilities until May 1, 2015.

November 2014 - Oregon voters approved Ballot Measure 91 to legalize the use and possession of
recreational marijuana on July 1, 2015.  Measure 91 creates four types of licenses: producers, processors,
wholesalers and retailers.  The measure also recognizes that local governments can adopt reasonable time,
place and manner regulations of the nuisance aspects of businesses that sell marijuana to consumers.



 
Given that the City's moratorium is set to expire on May 1, 2015, the City must take action now to adopt an
ordinance that establishes regulations of marijuana facilities in a timely manner.
   
The City Council has discussed this topic at several meetings over the past year expressing an interest in
regulating marijuana uses. In February 2014 and April 2014 the discussion centered around moratoriums on
marijuana uses. In August 2014 the City Council received an update on other Oregon cities’ marijuana regulations.
On October 27, 2014, the City Council received a briefing on the results from the Public Opinion Survey conducted
by Riley Research Associates. On January 15, 2015, the Planning Commission received a briefing about regulating
both medical and recreational marijuana facilities within the City, ballot Measure 91, and other Oregon city and
county regulations for both types of facilities. The City Council was briefed on the same information on January 26,
2015.  Based on these recent discussions staff has drafted code language summarized below.

PROPOSED CODE LANGUAGE

Definitions: 

Edible Marijuana - edible product that contains marijuana

Homegrown Marijuana - marijuana grown or made by a person 21 years of age or older for noncommercial
purposes

Marijuana - all parts of the plant of the Cannabis family Moraceae, whether growing or not; the resin
extracted from any part of the plant; and every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or
preparation of the plant or its resin, and includes both medical and recreational marijuana as defined by
Oregon law.

Marijuana Extracts - a product obtained by separating resins from the marijuana plant by solvent extraction.

Marijuana Facilities - a commercial or public use or structure where marijuana is produced, processed,
wholesaled, retailed, distributed, transferred, sold or consumed and registered with the Oregon Health
Authority (OHA) or the Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC).

Planning Districts Where Marijuana Facilities are Permitted: 

Light Manufacturing (ML)

General Manufacturing (MG)

Manufacturing Business Park (MBP)

Standards for Marijuana Facilities: 

Must comply with all applicable State requirements

Cannot be located within 3,000 feet, measured from the closest property lines, from any of the following:

Residential Planning District or residential uses

Schools

Library

City Parks listed below: 
Atfalati Park
Brown's Ferry Park
Ibach Park
Jurgens Park
Lafky Park
Little Woodrose Nature Park
Saarien Wayside Park



Stoneridge Park
Sweek Pond Natural Area Park
Tualatin Commons
Tualatin Commons Park
Tualatin Community Park

Cannot be located within 2,000 feet, measured from the closest property line, of any other marijuana facility

Cannot exceed 3,000 square feet in size

Must be located in a permanent building and may not be located in a trailer, shipping container, cargo
container, tent, motor vehicle, or other non-permanent structure

Retail and dispensaries are prohibited from co-locating with other marijuana facilities

Drive-through marijuana facilities are prohibited

Marijuana Facility Operating Restrictions: 

Hours of operation are limited to the hours between 10:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m.

Comply with the restrictions on edible marijuana 

Odors and other objectionable odors must be confined to levels undetectable at the property line

Primary entrances must be located on street-facing facades and clearly visible from a public or private street

Outdoor storage of merchandise, plants or other materials is prohibited

Edible Marijuana: 

All edible marijuana must be individually wrapped at the original point of preparation

Labeling must be distinctly and clearly legible on the front of the package and must include: 
a warning that the contents contain marijuana
a statement that the contents are not a food product; and 
a statement emphasizing that the product is to be kept away from children

Packaging of edibles must be in child-resistant packaging

Packaging that makes the product attractive to children or imitates candy is prohibited

Retail sale of edible marijuana products must be behind a commercial counter or in an enclosed display
case. 

Butane Extraction: 

The production of marijuana extracts through the use of butane is prohibited

Homegrown Marijuana 

Persons growing homegrown marijuana must comply with all applicable state law requirements

Homegrown marijuana cannot be grown in the front yard of any property in a residential planning district and
must comply with the following: 

Fully screened from view on all sides
Located at least 10 feet away from all property lines and 25 feet away from all adjacent residences on
neighboring properties

No person may produce, process, keep, or store homemade marijuana extracts

Medical marijuana facilities are only allowed by state law in commercial, industrial or mixed use or agricultural land
(ORS 475.314). Based on input from the Tualatin Planning Commission and the Tualatin City Council, the



downtown area was not recommended as an appropriate location for marijuana facilities. After applying a 3,000 foot
buffer to residential areas and excluding commercial planning districts that are found in or near the downtown area,
manufacturing planning districts were left as viable opportunities excluding Manufacturing Park (Tualatin
Development Code Chapter 62). Attachment 101 shows the part of the City where marijuana facilities would be
allowed based on the above buffer restrictions. Attachment 102 includes the draft proposed code language, and
Attachment 103 contains the analysis and findings for the proposed amendments.

PUBLIC COMMENT
The City sought input from the public in the form of a public opinion survey the results of which were presented to
the City Council during a work session on October 27, 2014. This meeting of the Planning Commission gives
citizens and members of the public an additional opportunity to comment on the proposed text amendments and for
the Planning Commission to consider these comments when making a recommendation to the City Council. A
public hearing is scheduled for March 9, 2015, during which the public will have another opportunity to give input on
the proposed amendment. 

NEXT STEPS
Staff will present the draft language for the Plan Text Amendment to City Council at the February 23, 2015 work
session. A public hearing on the proposed amendments is scheduled for March 9, with adoption of an ordinance
occurring on March 23, 2015. It is critical that an ordinance be adopted by March 31, 2015, so that it will become
effective before the City-wide moratorium on medical marijuana dispensaries expires on May 1, 2015.

OUTCOMES OF DECISION:
A recommendation to approve the Plan Text Amendment would result in the following: 

Tualatin Development Code Section 31.060 Definitions will be amended to include new definitions; a new
Chapter 80 Marijuana Facilities and Related Regulations will be added to govern time, place and manner of
marijuana facilities within the City; and marijuana facilities will be added as a permitted use in the Light and
General Manufacturing, and the Manufacturing Business Park Planning Districts (Chapters 60, 61 and 64).

A recommendation to deny the Plan Text Amendment would result in the following: 
The Tualatin Development Code will not be revised to regulate marijuana facilities within the City. 

ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION:
The alternatives to the Planning Commission recommendation are: 

Approve the proposed Plan Text Amendment with alterations to the draft language. 1.
Deny the proposed Plan Text Amendment. 2.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
The FY 2014/2015 budget accounts for the costs of City initiated code amendments.

Attachments: 101. Marijuana Facilities Map
102. Draft Proposed Code Language
103. Draft Analysis and Findings
104. Presentation



n
n

Potential Medical Marijuana Zoning - 3000' from Residential Districts, Parks, & Schools

30
00

'

3000'

RMLRH
RH/HR

RL
RMH

Residential Planning Districts

Schoolsn

Tualatin Parks
Marijuana Facilities Allowed
(3000' from Residential Districts, Parks, and Schools)

This map is derived from various digital database sources.
While an attempt has been made to provide an accurate map,
the City of Tualatin, OR assumes no responsibility or liability
for any errors or ommissions in the information.  This map is
provided "as is". -IS Dept.
Printed 2/4/2015/



 

 

 

City of Tualatin 

Marijuana Facilities Draft Code Language 

 

 

 

Key for the document: 

Existing Code Language 

Revised Existing Code Language 

New Code Language 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 



Section 31.060 Definitions. 

Manufacturing.  As used in the Manufacturing Planning districts, manufacturing means the creation of 

basic parts of a manufactured product from raw materials.  See also Assembly. 

Marijuana.  All parts of the plant of the Cannabis family Moraceae, whether growing or not; the resin 
extracted from any part of the plant; and every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or 
preparation of the plant or its resin, and includes both medical and recreational marijuana as defined by 
Oregon law.  

 
Marijuana, edible. Edible product that contains marijuana.  
 
Marijuana extract. A product obtained by separating resins from the marijuana plant by solvent 
extraction. 

 
Marijuana facilities. A commercial or public use or structure where marijuana is produced, processed, 
wholesaled, retailed, distributed, transferred, sold or consumed and registered with the Oregon Health 
Authority (OHA)or the Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC). 
 
Marijuana, homegrown. Marijuana grown or made by a person 21 years of age or older for 
noncommercial purposes. 

Marquee.  A projecting, permanent, roofed structure attached to and supported only by a building. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 



Section 60.020 Permitted Uses. 

No building, structure or land shall be used in this district, except for the following uses as restricted in 

TDC 60.021: 

(1) Assembly, packaging, processing and other treatment of products, such as dairy products, and 

soft drinks. 

 

(2)(15) Assembly and packaging of small electrical and electronic appliances, such as radios, 

televisions, phonographs, audio, video and computer equipment, and office machines. 

 

(3)(2) Assembly of the following types of products: 

(a) Bicycles. 

  

(b) Small electric generators. 

  

(c) Small electric motors. 

  

(d) Marine pleasure craft. 

 

(e) Sashes and doors. 

  

(f) Vending machines 

(4)(25) Child day care center, provided it is in a building with manufacturing, processing, 

assembling, warehousing or wholesaling uses and provided all exterior walls and outdoor play 

areas shall be at least 400 feet from the exterior walls and pump islands of any automobile service 

station, irrespective of any structures in between. 

(5)(3) Contractor's office. 

 

(6)(29) Electrical substation. 

 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-60-light-manufacturing-planning-district-ml%2360.021


(7)(4) Electroplating. 

 

(8)(26) Greenways and Natural Areas, including but not limited to bike and pedestrian paths and 

interpretive stations. 

 

(9)(11) Laboratories:  testing, medical, dental, photo, or motion picture, except structural-

mechanical testing laboratories. 

 

(10)(5) Laundry, dry cleaning, dyeing or rug cleaning plant (non-retail). 

 

(11)(6) Machine shop, including automotive machine shop, of less than 7,500 gross square feet. 

 

(12)(17) Manufacture of musical instruments, toys and novelties. 

(13)(16) Manufacture of pottery and ceramics, using only previously pulverized clay. 

 

(14)(7) Manufacture of the following types of products: 

(a) Cabinets. 

  

(b) Furniture. 

  

(c) Mattresses. 

  

(d) Scientific, medical or dental laboratory measuring, analyzing and controlling equipment, 

and related tools and supplies. 

(15) Marijuana Facility, subject to the provisions of TDC Chapter 80.  

(16)(18) Molding of small products from plastic. 

 

(17)(30) Natural gas pumping station. 

 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 



(18)(10) Offices for executive, administrative, and professional uses related to the sale or service of 

industrial products. 

 

(19)(33) Other uses of similar character found by the Planning Director to meet the purpose of this 

district, as provided in TDC 31.070. 

 

(20)(14) Processing, assembly, packaging, and other treatment of small products manufactured 

from the following previously prepared or semi-finished materials:  bone, hair, fur, leather, 

feathers, textiles, plastics, glass, wood, paper, cork, wire up to 1/4 inch (0.25") in diameter, rubber, 

and rubber compounds, precious or semi-precious stones, and similar small products composed of 

previously prepared or semi-finished materials. 

 

(21)(13) Processing, assembly, packaging, and other treatment of such products as small hand 

tools, optical goods, hearing aids, and scientific instruments or equipment. 

 

(22)(12) Processing, assembly, packaging, or other treatment of such products as bakery goods, 

candy, cosmetics, pharmaceuticals, toiletries. 

 

(23)(24) Production of agricultural crops. 

 

(24)(28) Public works shop and storage yard. 

 

(25)(22) Publishing and printing (non-retail). 

 

(26)(19) Sales of industrial hand tools, industrial supplies such as safety equipment and welding 

equipment, that are products primarily sold wholesale to other industrial firms or industrial 

workers. 

(27)(23) Sewer and water pump stations, pressure reading stations, water reservoir. 

(28)(35) Shared service facilities. 

 

(29)(8) Spinning or knitting of fibers. 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-31-general-provisions


 

(30)(9) Storage of automobiles, boats, buses, trailers, and recreational vehicles, except not allowed 

in the Special Commercial Setback, TDC 60.035(1-3). 

 

(31)(27) Telephone exchange or switching facility. 

 

(32)(21) Trade or industrial schools. 

 

(33)(34) Transportation facilities and improvements. 

 

(34)(20) Warehousing related to the above uses; and warehousing for merchandise or goods 

normally sold or owned in commercial or residential planning districts, but excluding direct retail 

sales to customers from such warehouse structure, and excluding the storage of hazardous 

materials. 

 

(35)(32) Wireless communication facility. 

 

(36)(31) Wireless communication facility attached. 

 

 [Ord. 812-90 §3, 9/24/90; renumbered by Ord. 824-91 §11, 2/11/91; renumbered by Ord. 831-91 

§1, 5/13/91; Ord. 849-91 §32, 11/25/91; Ord. 911-94 §2, 2/14/94; Ord. 913-94 §5, 2/28/94; Ord. 

965-96 §68, 12/9/96; Ord. 979-97 §24, 7/14/97; Ord. 1003-98 §3, 4/27/98; Ord. 1026-99 §74, 

8/9/99; Ord. 1046-00 §8, 2/14/00; Ord. 1050-00 §1, 3/13/00; Ord. 1122-02, 11/25/02; Ord. 1103-

02, 3/25/02; Ord. 1133-03, 3/24/03; Ord. 1164-04 §2, 6/28/04] 

Section 60.021 Restrictions on Permitted Uses in ML. 

The following restrictions shall apply to those uses listed as permitted uses in TDC 60.020: 

(1) The use must be conducted wholly within a completely enclosed building, except off-street 

parking and loading, utility facilities, wireless communication facilities, outdoor storage of 

materials and products directly related to the permitted use and outdoor play areas of child day 

care centers as required by state day care certification standards. 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-60-light-manufacturing-planning-district-ml%2360.035
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-60-light-manufacturing-planning-district-ml%2360.020


(2) The retail sale of products manufactured, assembled, packaged or wholesaled on the site is 

allowed provided that the retail sale area, including the showroom area, shall be no greater than 

5% of the gross floor area of the building not to exceed 1,500 square feet. 

(3) For other retail uses, excluding retail sales of products manufactured, assembled, packaged or 

wholesaled on the site, the following restrictions shall apply: 

(a) Retail uses on land designated Employment Area or Corridor on Map 9-4 shall not be 

greater than 60,000 square feet of gross floor area per building or business. 

  

(b) Retail commercial, retail service and professional service uses on land designated 

Industrial Area on Map 9-4 shall not be greater than 5,000 square feet of sales or service area 

in a single outlet, or not greater than 20,000 square feet of sales or service area for multiple 

outlets in a single building or in multiple buildings that are part of the same development 

project, with the following two exceptions, which shall not be subject to the size limitations 

stated in this subsection: 

(i) Commercial uses within the Special Setbacks for Commercial Uses Area, shown on 

Map 9-5, and as specified in TDC 60.035. 

(ii) Development approved through the application of the Industrial Business Park 

Overlay District to certain properties, as specified in TDC Chapter 69. 

(iii) Development approved through the application of standards for additional small-

scale mixed uses in ML as specified in TDC 60.037-60.038.  

(4) Marijuana facilities are subject to TDC chapter 80. To the extent there is a conflict between 

the provisions in this Chapter and the provisions in TDC Chapter 80, the provisions in TDC 

Chapter 80 apply.  

[Ord. 1212-06, 06/26/06; Ord. 1370-14 §3, 03/24/14] 

 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/legal/developmentcode/12818/map9-4designtypeboundaries.pdf
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/legal/developmentcode/12818/map9-4designtypeboundaries.pdf
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/legal/developmentcode/12818/map9-5commercialsetback_0.pdf
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-60-light-manufacturing-planning-district-ml%2360.035
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-69-industrial-business-park-overlay-planning-district


Section 61.020 Permitted Uses. 

No building, structure or land shall be used, except for the following uses as restricted in TDC 61.021. 

(1) All uses permitted by TDC 60.020 and 60.037 in the Light Manufacturing Planning District. 

(2) Assembly, packaging, processing, and other treatment of beer, coffee, and canned goods. 

(3) Assembly of electrical appliances, such as refrigerators, freezers, washing machines, and dryers. 

(4) Auto body and/or paint shop; auto machine shop; auto radiator repair shop; general auto and 

light truck repair, including but not limited to, repairing and rebuilding engines and repair of 

transmissions, drivelines and rearends except not allowed in the Special Commercial Setback, TDC 

61.035(1-3). 

(5) Chemical warehouse and distribution. 

(6) Cold storage plant. 

(7) Concrete batch plant, except not allowed in the Leveton Tax Increment District. 

(8) Manufacture of the following types of products: 

(a) Batteries. 

(b) Boilers. 

(c) Bottles. 

(d) Brick, tiles, or terra cotta. 

(e) Cans. 

(f) Chainsaws. 

(g) Electric generators. 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-61-general-manufacturing-planning-district-mg%2361.021
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-60-light-manufacturing-planning-district-ml
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-60-light-manufacturing-planning-district-ml
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-61-general-manufacturing-planning-district-mg%2361.035
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-61-general-manufacturing-planning-district-mg%2361.035


(h) Electric motors. 

(i) Electric transformers. 

(j) Engines, larger gasoline or diesel. 

(k) Heating and cooling equipment. 

(l) Industrial gases, excluding chlorine. 

(m) Ladders. 

(n) Lawnmowers. 

(o) Manufactured Dwellings. 

(p) Motor vehicles. 

(q) Paint. 

(r) Pet food. 

(s) Prefabricated building or structural members for buildings. 

(t) Rototillers. 

(u) Signs and display structures. 

(v) Windows. 

(9) Marijuana Facility, subject to the provisions of TDC Chapter 80. 

(10)(9) Metal casting (small to large size). 

(11)(10) Metal fabrication (light to medium) (of unfinished or semi-finished metals). 

(12)(11) Petroleum product distribution and storage. 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 



(13)(12) Planning mill. 

(14)(13) Processing, assembly, packaging, and other treatment of small products manufactured 

from sheet metal, wire larger than 1/4 inch (0.25") in diameter, or tobacco. 

(15)(14) Production of agricultural crops. 

(16)(15) Sale, service and rental of industrial machinery including machine tools, processing, and 

packaging machinery, forklifts, hoists and conveyors. 

(17)(16) Sandblasting. 

(18)(17) Storage and retail sale of rock, gravel, barkdust, sawdust, coal or topsoil except not 

allowed in the Special Commercial Setback, TDC 60.035(1-3). 

(19)(18) Structural-mechanical testing laboratories. 

(20)(19) Welding shop. 

(21) Wireless communication facility. 

(22)(20) Wireless communication facility attached. 

(23)(22) Other uses of a similar character found by the Planning Director to meet the purpose of 

this district, as provided in TDC 31.070. 

(24)(23) Sale, service and rental of construction and industrial equipment to contractors and 

industrial firms only.  

[Ord. 592-83, 6/13/83; Ord. 621-84, 2/13/84; Ord. 812-90, 9/24/90; Ord. 819-91, 1/14/91; Ord. 

911-94, 2/14/94; Ord. 913-94, 2/28/94; Ord. 965-96, 12/9/96; and Ord. 988-97, 12/8/97;. Ord. 

1003-98, 4/27/98; Ord. 1026-99, 8/9/99; Ord. 2046-00, 2/14/00; Ord. 1133-03, 03/24/03; Ord. 

1122-02, 11/25/02; Ord. 1212-06, 06/26/06] 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-61-general-manufacturing-planning-district-mg%2361.035
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-31-general-provisions


Section 61.021 Restrictions on Permitted Uses. 

The following restrictions shall apply to those uses listed as permitted uses in TDC 61.020: 

(1) The use must be conducted wholly within a completely enclosed building, except off-street 

parking and loading, utility facilities, wireless communication facilities, outdoor storage of 

materials and products directly related to the permitted use and outdoor play areas of child day 

care centers as required by state day care certification standards. 

(2) The retail sale of products manufactured, assembled, packaged or wholesaled on the site is 

allowed provided that the retail sale area, including the showroom area, shall be no greater than 

5% of the gross floor area of the building not to exceed 1,500 square feet. 

(3) For other retail uses, excluding retail sales of products manufactured, assembled, packaged or 

wholesaled on the site, the following restrictions shall apply: 

(a) Retail uses on land designated Employment Area or Corridor on Map 9-4 shall not be 

greater than 60,000 square feet of gross floor area per building or business. 

(b) Retail commercial, retail service and professional service uses on land designated 

Industrial Area on Map 9-4 shall not be greater than 5,000 square feet of sales or service area 

in a single outlet, or not greater than 20,000 square feet of sales or service area for multiple 

outlets in a single building or in multiple buildings that are part of the same development 

project, with the following two exceptions, which shall not be subject to the size limitations 

stated in this subsection: 

(i) Commercial uses within the Special Setbacks for Commercial Uses Area, shown on 

Map 9-5, and as specified in TDC 61.035, except 61.035(4)(b). 

(ii) Development approved through the application of the Industrial Business Park 

Overlay District to certain properties, as specified in TDC Chapter 69. 

(iii) Development approved through the application of standards for additional small-

scale mixed uses in ML as specified in TDC 60.037-60.038. 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-61-general-manufacturing-planning-district-mg%2361.020
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/legal/developmentcode/12818/map9-4designtypeboundaries.pdf
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/legal/developmentcode/12818/map9-4designtypeboundaries.pdf
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/legal/developmentcode/12818/map9-5commercialsetback_0.pdf
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-61-general-manufacturing-planning-district-mg%2361.035
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-69-industrial-business-park-overlay-planning-district


(4) Marijuana facilities are subject to TDC Chapter 80. To the extent there is a conflict between 

the provisions in this Chapter and the provisions in TDC Chapter 80, the provisions in TDC 

Chapter 80 apply.  

 [Ord. 1212-06, 06/26/06; Ord. 1370-14 §10, 3/24/14] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 



Section 64.020 Permitted Uses. 

No building, structure or land shall be used except for the following: 

(1)(18) Accessory Uses, incidental and subordinate to a permitted or conditionally permitted 

primary use. 

(2)(9) Corporate, regional, or district office headquarters for any use permitted in this Code, 

provided that the offices occupy at least 20,000 square feet and that no manufacturing is 

conducted where not otherwise permitted in this chapter. 

(3)(14) Electrical substation. 

(4)(3) Food and beverage product processing and packaging. 

(5)(11) Greenways and Natural Areas, including but not limited to bike and pedestrian paths and 

interpretive stations. 

(6)(2) Manufacture, assembly and production uses except the uses and activities listed as 

prohibited in TDC 64.040: 

(7) Marijuana Facility, subject to the provisions in TDC Chapter 80. 

(8)(4) Metal fabrication (light to medium) (of unfinished or semi-finished metals). 

(9)(5) Molding of products from plastic and ceramic materials. 

(10)(15) Natural gas pumping station. 

(11)(8) Offices when part of a manufacturing use as listed in (1) through (7) above 4, 6, 8, 9, 13, 16 

and 19 of this section. 

(12)(19) Other uses of similar character, when found by the Community Development Director to 

meet the purpose of this district, as provided in TDC 31.070. 

(13)(6) Printing and publishing. 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-64-manufacturing-business-park-mbp-planning-district%2364.040
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-31-general-provisions


(14)(10) Private parking lot improved and landscaped in accordance with TDC Chapter 73. 

(15)(13) Public works shop and storage yard. 

(16)(1) Research and development offices and laboratories for chemical, engineering, and physical 

sciences; medical and pharmaceutical products; alternative energy production from sources such 

as solar and wind; industrial products and consumer products. 

(17)(12) Sewer and Water Pump Station, Pressure Reading Station. Water Reservoir. 

(18)(17) Transportation Facilities and Improvements. 

(19)(7) Warehousing related to the above uses 4, 6, 8, 9, 13 and 16 of this section. 

 (20)(16) Wireless communication facility attached. 

[Ord. 13211-11 §56, 04/25/11] 

Section 64.021 Restrictions on Permitted Uses. 

The following restrictions shall apply to those uses listed as permitted uses in TDC 64.020. 

(1) The use must be conducted wholly within a completely enclosed building, except off-street 

parking and loading, utility facilities, wireless communication facilities, outdoor storage of 

materials and products directly related to the permitted use 

(2) The retail sale of products manufactured, assembled, packaged or wholesaled on the site is 

allowed provided that the retail sale area, including the showroom area, shall be no greater than 

5% of the gross floor area of the building not to exceed 1,500 square feet.  

(3) Marijuana facilities are subject to TDC chapter 80. To the extent there is a conflict between the 

provisions in this Chapter and the provisions in TDC Chapter 80, the provisions in TDC Chapter 80 

apply.  

[Ord. 13211-11 §57, 04/25/11] 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-73-community-design-standards
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-64-manufacturing-business-park-mbp-planning-district%2364.020


(Editor’s Note: New Code Section) 

TUALATIN DEVELOPMENT CODE CHAPTER 80 

MARIJUANA FACILITIES AND RELATED REGULATIONS. 

Sections: 
80.010 Purpose. 
80.020 Definitions. 
80.030 Relationship to Other Standards. 
80.050 Planning District Where Marijuana Facilities Permitted. 
80.060 Standards for Marijuana Facilities. 
80.070 Marijuana Facility Operating Restrictions. 
80.100 Edible Marijuana. 
80.200 Butane Extraction 
80.300 Homegrown Marijuana. 
80.400 Violations. 
 
80.010 Purpose.  The purpose of this chapter is to: 

(1) Protect the general health, safety, property, and welfare of the public; 
 

(2) Balance the right of individuals to produce and access marijuana and marijuana derivatives 
consistent with state law, with the need to minimize adverse impacts to nearby properties that 
may result from the production, storage, distribution, sale, and/or use of marijuana and 
derivatives; 
 

(3) Prevent or reduce criminal activity that my result in harm to persons or property; 
 

(4) Prevent or reduce diversion of state-licensed marijuana and marijuana derivatives to minors; 
and 
 

(5) Minimize impacts to the City’s public safety services by reducing calls for service.  
 
80.020  Definitions. 
 

(1) “Edible marijuana” means edible product that contains marijuana.  
 

(2) “Homegrown marijuana” means marijuana grown or made by a person 21 years of age or older 
for noncommercial purposes. 
 

(3) “Marijuana” means all parts of the plant of the Cannabis family Moraceae, whether growing or 
not; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; and every compound, manufacture, salt, 
derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant or its resin, and includes both medical and 
recreational marijuana as defined by Oregon law.  
 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 



(4) “Marijuana extract” means a product obtained by separating resins from the marijuana plant by 
solvent extraction. 
 

(5) “Marijuana facilities” means a commercial or public use or structure where marijuana is 
produced, processed, wholesaled, retailed, distributed, transferred, sold or consumed and 
registered with the Oregon Health Authority (OHA)or the Oregon Liquor Control Commission 
(OLCC). 

 
80.030 Relationship to Other Standards.  

(1) The provisions of this Chapter apply to all marijuana facilities requiring a state license or 
registration. 
 
(2) The regulations in this Chapter are in addition to other development code standards, including 

all base zone standards. Sites with overlay zones, plan districts, inventoried hazards, and/or 
sensitive lands are subject to additional regulations. Specific uses or development types may 
also be subject to regulations set forth elsewhere in this title. 

(3) To the extent there is a conflict between other provisions in the Tualatin Development Code 
and the provisions of this Chapter, the provisions in this Chapter apply.  

 
80.050  Planning Districts Where Marijuana Facilities Permitted.  Marijuana facilities are permitted in 
the following planning districts and subject to the other provisions of this Chapter: 

(1)       Light Manufacturing (ML) 
(2) General Manufacturing (MG); and 
(3) Manufacturing Business Park (MBP). 

80.060   Standards for Marijuana Facilities. 
(1) All Marijuana facilities must comply with all applicable State requirements. 

 
(2) Marijuana Facilities cannot be located within 3,000 feet, measured from the closest property 

lines, from any: 
(a) Residential Planning District or residential uses; 
(b) City Park listed below:  

(i) Atfalati Park 
(ii) Brown’s Ferry Park 
(iii) Ibach Park 
(iv) Jurgens Park 
(v) Lafky Park 
(vi) Little Woodrose Nature Park  
(vii) Saarinen Wayside Park  
(viii) Stoneridge Park 
(ix) Sweek Pond Natural Area Park  
(x) Tualatin Commons 
(xi) Tualatin Commons Park 
(xii) Tualatin Community Park 

(c) School; as defined in Chapter 31 of the Tualatin Community Development Code; and 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 



(d) Library. 
 

(3) Marijuana Facilities cannot be located within 2,000 feet, measured from the closest property 
line, of any other marijuana facility. 
 

(4) Marijuana facilities cannot exceed 3,000 square feet in size. 
 

(5) Marijuana facilities must be located in a permanent building and may not be located in a trailer, 
shipping container, cargo container, tent, motor vehicle, or other non-permanent structure. 
 

(6) Retail and dispensaries marijuana facilities are prohibited from co-locating with other marijuana 
facilities. 
 

(7) Drive-through marijuana facilities are prohibited. 
 
 

80.070   Marijuana Facility Operating Restrictions.  Marijuana facilities must comply with the following 
operating restrictions:  
 

(1) Hours of operation are limited to the hours between 10:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. 
 

(2) Comply with the restrictions on edible marijuana as provided in TDC 80.100. 
 

(3) All marijuana odors and other objectionable odors must be confined to levels undetectable at the 
property line. 
 

(4) Primary entrances must be located on street-facing facades and clearly visible from a public or 
private street. 
 

(5) Outdoor storage of merchandise, plants or other materials is prohibited. 
 
80.100 Edible Marijuana.  Marijuana facilities that produce, process, wholesale, distribute, transfer, or 
sell edible marijuana must comply with the following provisions: 

(1) All edible marijuana must be individually wrapped at the original point of preparation. 
 

(2) Labeling must be distinctly and clearly legible on the front of the package and must include:  
(a) a warning that the contents contain marijuana;  
(b) a statement that the contents are not a food product; and  
(c) a statement emphasizing that the product is to be kept away from children. 
 

(3) Packaging of edibles must be in child-resistant packaging. 
 

(4) Packaging that makes the product attractive to children or imitates candy is prohibited. 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 



 
(5) Retail sale of edible marijuana products must be behind a commercial counter or in an 

enclosed display case.  
 

80.200  Butane Extraction.  The production of marijuana extracts through the use of butane is 
prohibited. 
 
80.300  Homegrown Marijuana. 

(1) Persons growing homegrown marijuana must comply with all applicable state law 
requirements. 
 

(2) Homegrown marijuana cannot be grown in the front yard of any property in a residential 
planning district and must comply with the following: 
(a) Be fully screened from view on all sides. 
(b) Be located at least 10 feet away from all property lines and 25 feet away from all adjacent 

residences on neighboring properties. 
 

(3) No person may produce, process, keep, or store homemade marijuana extracts. 
 
80.400  Violations.  
(1) Any person who violates any provision of this Chapter commits a civil infraction and is subject to a 
fine of up to $1,000. Each violation, and each day that a violation continues, is a separate civil infraction.  
 
(2) The civil infraction procedures in Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 7-01 apply to the prosecution of 
any violation of this Chapter. 

 

 

Exhibit B DRAFT  1/30/15 



 
 

 

PTA-15-01:  ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS 
DRAFT 

 
MARIJUANA FACILITIES 

 
 
 
Plan Text Amendment 15-01 (PTA-15-01) proposed definitions and reasonable time, place 
and manner restrictions of Marijuana Facilities by amending the Tualatin Development Code.   
 
Amendments are proposed to the following chapters:  

Chapter 31 General Provisions;  
Chapter 60 Light Manufacturing;  
Chapter 61 General Manufacturing;  
Chapter 64 Manufacturing Business Park  
Chapter 80 Marijuana Facilities 
  
 

Background 
 
The City of Tualatin proposes legislative amendments to the Tualatin Development Code 
(TDC) to establish reasonable time, place and manner regulations for marijuana facilities.  
Proposed changes include new definitions added to Section 31.060 Definitions; Creating a 
new Chapter 80 Marijuana Facilities which regulates such aspects as hours of operation, 
buffer distances from Residential Planning Districts, residential uses, schools, park and 
libraries, buffers from other facilities and off site odor standards, edible marijuana, butane 
extraction and homegrown marijuana; adding Marijuana Facilities as an allowed use in Light 
and General Manufacturing and the Manufacturing Business Park Planning District (Chapters 
60,61 and 64). 
 
The Analysis and Findings presented here pertain only to the Plan Text Amendment proposed 
to amend language in the Tualatin Development Code.  
 
Plan Amendment Criteria (TDC Section 1.032) 
 
The approval criteria of the Tualatin Development Code (TDC), Section 1.032, must be met 
if the proposed PTA is to be granted. The plan amendment criteria are addressed below. 
 
1.  Granting the amendment is in the public interest. 
 
The State of Oregon has a legislative history dating back to 1998 which has progressively 
allowed businesses and land uses to produce, process, wholesale and retail marijuana and 
marijuana products. 
 
Legislative History 



PTA-15-01 Marijuana Facilities 
DRAFT Analysis and Findings 
January 30, 2015 
 
 
 

November 1998-   Ballot Measure 67, the Oregon Medical Marijuana Act, was 
approved by Oregon voters. 
 
August 2013-   The Oregon Heath Authority developed a process to register medical 
marijuana dispensaries under HB 3460.   
 
March 2014-  Senate Bill 1531 authorizes local governments to adopt reasonable 
regulations regarding the hours of operation, location, and manner in which medical 
marijuana dispensaries are operated. Additionally, jurisdictions were allowed to enact 
a moratorium on dispensaries set to expire May 1, 2015. 
 
April 2014-  The City of Tualatin adopted Ordinance No. 1373-14 which placed a 
moratorium on medical marijuana facilities until May 1, 2015. 

 
November 2014-  Oregon voters approved Ballot Measure 91 to legalize the use and 
possession of recreational marijuana on July 1, 2015.  Measure 91 creates four types 
of licenses: producers, processors, wholesalers and retailers.  The measure also 
recognizes that local governments can adopt reasonable time, place and manner 
regulations of the nuisance aspects of businesses that sell marijuana to consumers. 
 

FINDING:  Through state legislation, local jurisdictions have the ability to regulate the time, 
place and manner of marijuana facilities.  Absent local regulations marijuana facilities have 
the ability to locate in the City in accordance with State regulations.    
 
The City hired Riley Research Associates to conduct a Public Opinion Survey among 
Tualatin residents to gauge their level of support for Marijuana Dispensaries (Exhibit A).  
While the poll found that a majority of those surveyed supported both medical and 
recreational dispensaries, the polling also revealed recommendations for time place and 
manner regulations.   
 
The City Council has discussed this topic at several meetings over the past year expressing 
an interest in regulating marijuana uses.  In February 2014 and April 2014 the discussion 
centered around moratoriums on marijuana uses. In August 2014 they received an update on 
other Oregon cities’ marijuana regulations.  Finally, on October 27, 2014 the Council 
received a briefing on the results from the Public Opinion Survey conducted by Riley 
Research Associates (Exhibit A).     
 
Based on the laws changing at the State level regarding marijuana uses, the public opinions 
gathered through a City sponsored research and the discussions of the elected officials it is in 
the Public’s interest to grant this amendment.  
 
Granting the amendment is in the public interest.   
 

2 
 



PTA-15-01 Marijuana Facilities 
DRAFT Analysis and Findings 
January 30, 2015 
 
 
Criterion “1” is met. 
 
 
2.  The public interest is best protected by granting the amendment at this time. 
 
FINDING:  Two pieces of legislations effectively placed a moratorium on marijuana facilities 
until May 1, 2015.  The first piece was Senate Bill 1531 which authorized cities to enact a 
moratorium and the second piece is City of Tualatin Ordinance No. 1373-14 which created 
the city wide moratorium on marijuana facilities.  According to Chapter VIII Section 36 of 
the City Charter, Ordinances take effect 30 days after Council adoption. 
 
In order to implement reasonable time, place and manner regulations when the moratorium 
ends, the public interest is best protected by granting the amendment at this time. 
 
Granting the amendment at this time best protects the public interest.  
 
Criterion “2” is met. 
 
 
3.  The proposed amendment is in conformity with the applicable objectives of the 
Tualatin Community Plan. 
 
The applicable objectives of the Tualatin Community Plan are discussed below:   
 
Chapter 7 Manufacturing Planning Districts 
Section 7.040 Manufacturing Planning District Objectives 

(2) Light Manufacturing Planning District 
Suitable for warehousing, wholesaling and light manufacturing processes that are not 
hazardous and that do not create undue amounts of noise, dust, odor, vibration, or 
smoke. Also suitable, with appropriate restrictions, are the retail sale of products not 
allowed for sale in General Commercial areas, subject to the Special Commercial 
Setback from arterial streets and Commercial Services Overlay as generally illustrated 
in Map 9-5 and specifically set forth in TDC 60.035, and office commercial uses 
where any portion of a legally created lot is within 60 feet of a CO Planning District 
boundary. 
 
The following uses within the Light Manufacturing District shall comply with the 
following size limits established by Metro. Retail sale, retail service and professional 
service uses shall be no greater than 5,000 square feet of sales or service area per 
outlet, or not greater than 20,000 square feet of sales or service area for multiple 
outlets in a single building or in multiple buildings that are part of the same 
development project… 

 
(3) General Manufacturing Planning District 
Suitable for light manufacturing uses and also for a wide range of heavier 

3 
 

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/legal/developmentcode/12818/map9-5commercialsetback_0.pdf
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-60-light-manufacturing-planning-district-ml


PTA-15-01 Marijuana Facilities 
DRAFT Analysis and Findings 
January 30, 2015 
 
 

manufacturing and processing activities. Such areas could be expected to be more 
unsightly and to have more adverse environmental effects. 
 
(b) The following uses within the General Manufacturing District shall comply with 
the following size limits established by Metro.  Retail sale, retail service and 
professional service uses shall be no greater than 5,000 square feet of sales or service 
area per outlet, or not greater than 20,000 square feet of sales or service area for 
multiple outlets in a single building or in multiple buildings that are part of the same 
development project. 

 
(4) Manufacturing Business Park Planning District 
The purpose of the MBP Planning District is to provide an environment for industrial 
development consistent with the Southwest Tualatin Concept Plan (accepted by the 
City in October 2010) and as a Metro-designated Regionally Significant Industrial 
Area (RSIA) consistent with Metro’s Urban Growth Boundary expansion decisions of 
2002 and 2004. 
 
The MBP Planning District will be a mix of light industrial and high-tech uses in a 
corporate campus setting, consistent with MBP Planning District development 
standards. 

 
FINDING:  Marijuana Facilities as defined will include commercial or public use or structure 
where marijuana is sold, or consumed, produced, processed, distributed, transferred, sold, or 
consumed.  The retail sale of marijuana is not proposed as a permitted use in General 
Commercial areas of the City and therefore are suitable for Light Manufacturing, General 
Manufacturing and Manufacturing Business Park with appropriate restrictions.  All 
remaining types of facilities are appropriate for Light Manufacturing and General 
Manufacturing such as warehousing, wholesaling or manufacturing process.   
 
The proposed development standards restrict all marijuana facilities to 3,000 square feet in 
size and therefore comply with objectives of this Chapter.  
 
Facilities that receive a processor license from the OLCC are business that will transform raw 
marijuana into another product or extract.  They are also responsible for packaging and 
labeling of recreational marijuana.  This type of use is not expected to create undue amounts 
of noise, dust, vibration or smoke; however these facilities may produce an odor and there 
may be hazardous processes associated with extraction.  Proposed development standards 
require that developments confine all marijuana odors and other objectionable odors to levels 
undetectable at the property line.  Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue reviews all proposed 
developments and building permits and therefore will regulate any hazardous processes 
associated with extraction.   
 
 
Chapter 10. Community Design 

4 
 



PTA-15-01 Marijuana Facilities 
DRAFT Analysis and Findings 
January 30, 2015 
 
 
Section 10.020 Design Objectives. 

(4) Protect and enhance the City's appeal to tourists and visitors and thus support and 
stimulate business and industry and promote the desirability of investment and occupancy 
in business, commercial and industrial properties. 
 
(8) Sustain the comfort, health, tranquility and contentment of residents and attract new 
residents by reason of the City's favorable environment; and thus promote and protect the 
peace, health and welfare of the City. 

 
FINDING:  The proposed text amendments are intended to protect and enhance the City’s 
appeal to tourists and visitors by providing for additional development standards beyond 
what is currently required by the Tualatin Development Code in Chapter 73 Design 
Standards.   
 
These development standards include:  

• hours of operations;  
• location of primary entrances facing public or private streets;  
• location in a permanent building;  
• prohibiting outdoor storage;  
• prohibiting drive-through facilities 
• buffers from residential land 
• buffers between facilities 

 
Additionally, the proposed text amendment are intended to sustain the comfort, heath, 
tranquility and contentment of residents by placing regulations on home grow uses that 
require plants to be grown 10 feet away from property lines, 25 feet away from residences on 
neighboring properties and limiting growing to back yards.   
 
The proposed development standards allow the development of marijuana facilities within 
the City in a manner that is compatible with surrounding land uses and public facilities.   
 
The proposed amendment is in conformity with the applicable objectives of the Tualatin 
Community Plan. 
 
Criterion “3” is met. 
 
 
4.  The following factors were consciously considered: 
 
The various characteristics of the areas in the City. 
 
FINDING:  The characteristics of manufacturing and commercial areas were considered in 
preparation of the text amendments.  Medical marijuana facilities are only allowed by state 
law in commercial, industrial or mixed use or agricultural land (ORS 475.314).  Based on 
input from the Tualatin Planning Commission and the Tualatin City Council, the downtown 

5 
 



PTA-15-01 Marijuana Facilities 
DRAFT Analysis and Findings 
January 30, 2015 
 
 
area was not recommended as an appropriate location for marijuana facilities.  After applying 
a 3,000 foot buffer to residential areas and excluding commercial planning districts that are 
found in or near the downtown area, manufacturing planning districts were left as viable 
opportunities excluding Manufacturing Park (Tualatin Development Code Chapter 62).   
 
Infrastructure such as roads, water lines and sanitarily sewer lines in the Manufacturing Park 
Planning District were built with tax increment financing.  The purpose for doing this was to 
open new lands for employment and industry and over the last 26 years it has accommodated 
35 new employers and 2,200 jobs.   Therefore, the City strives to maintain this area for high 
tech or other campus style industrial development. 
 
Based on the above findings, the City finds that the characteristics of the various areas of the 
City that best suit proposed uses are in Light and General Manufacturing and the 
Manufacturing Business Park Planning Districts.  
 
The suitability of the area for particular land uses and improvements. 
 
FINDING:  Marijuana facilities are suitable to Light, General and Business Park 
Manufacturing districts because they are typically removed from places where minors 
congregate such as schools and libraries.  These are industrial lands that are deemed 
appropriate for medical marijuana dispensaries according to ORS 475.314 and the City 
intends to equally apply regulations to marijuana retailers as defined in Measure 91.   
 
Trends in land improvement and development. 
 
FINDING:  As described above in the background statement the State of Oregon has 
progressively moved toward a legalized status of marijuana possession and facilities.  The 
proposed text amendment is intended to be adaptive to the new marijuana economy as 
business and property owners try new and unknown business models.   
 
Property Values. 
 
FINDING:  The proposed text amendment is intended to create minimum compliance 
standards to prevent or mitigate potential negative impacts to property values that could 
result from marijuana related business activity.   
 
The needs of economic enterprises and the future development of the area. 
 
FINDING:  As described above, the proposed text amendment is intended to be adaptive to 
the new marijuana economy as business and property owners try new and unknown business 
models. 
 
 
Needed right-of-way and access for and to particular sites in the area. 

6 
 



PTA-15-01 Marijuana Facilities 
DRAFT Analysis and Findings 
January 30, 2015 
 
 
 
Not  applicable. 
 
Natural resources of the City and the protection and conservation of said resources. 
 
Not applicable. 
 
Prospective requirements for the development of natural resources in the City. 
 
Not applicable. 
 
And the public need for healthful, safe, aesthetic surroundings and conditions. 
 
FINDING:  The proposed text amendments are intended to project the public need for 
healthful, safe, aesthetic surroundings and conditions by providing for appropriate distance 
buffers from residential areas and between facility locations in order to prevent or reduce 
hazards associated with a cash only business, a product with a strong black market value, and 
the exposure of a controlled product to minors.   
 
Proof of change in a neighborhood or area.  
 
FINDING:  The City does not assert proof of change in a neighborhood or area. 
 
Mistake in the Plan Text or Plan Map. 
 
FINDING:  There is no mistake in the Plan Text or Plan Map. 
 
The above factors were consciously considered.   
 
Criterion “4” is met. 
 
 
5.  The criteria in the Tigard-Tualatin School District Facility Plan for school facility 
capacity have been considered when evaluating applications for a comprehensive plan 
amendment or for a residential land use regulation amendment. 
 
Because the PTA does not result in a change to plans or development regulations that would 
impact school facility capacity, Criterion “5” is not applicable. 
 
 
6.  Granting the amendment is consistent with the applicable State of Oregon Planning 
Goals and applicable Oregon Administrative Rules. 
 
Of the 19 statewide planning goals, staff determined three Goals are applicable. 

7 
 



PTA-15-01 Marijuana Facilities 
DRAFT Analysis and Findings 
January 30, 2015 
 
 
Goal 1, “Citizen Involvement,” states, “To develop a citizen involvement program that 
insures the opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases of the planning process.”  
FINDING:  This goal will be met by complying with Tualatin Development Code 1.031 
Notice Requirements for Plan Amendments.  At the time of this writing of draft Analysis and 
Findings notices have not been published yet.  A notice will be published in the Tualatin 
Times for 10 City business days prior to the public hearing. Notices will be posted in two 
conspicuous places within the City and a notice will be send to designated representatives of 
recognized Citizen Involvement Organizations.    
 
The Tualatin Planning Commission will hold a public meeting prior to the City Council 
Public Hearing.  This public meeting will give citizens and members of the public an 
opportunity to comment on the proposed text and the Planning Commission can consider 
these comments when making a recommendation to the City Council.  A public hearing is 
scheduled for March 9, 2015 during which the public can give input on the proposed 
amendment.  All work session agendas and minutes are available to the public through the 
City website. 
 
The City sought input from the public in the form of a public opinion survey the results of 
which were presented to the City Council during a work session on October 27, 2014.   
 
This Goal is satisfied.   
 
 
Goal 2, “Land Use Planning”, states, “To establish a land use planning process and 
policy framework as a basis for all decision and actions related to use of land and to 
assure an adequate factual base for such decisions and actions.” 
 
The Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) has acknowledged the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan as being consistent with the statewide planning goals.  The 
Development Code implements the Community Plan and both pieces combine to make the 
Comprehensive Plan.  The Community Plan establishes a process and standards to review 
changes to the Tualatin Development Code in compliance with the Community Plan and 
other applicable state requirements.  As discussed above under Criteria “3”, the applicable 
Community Plan standards have been applied to the proposed amendment. 
 
This Goal is satisfied 
 
Goal 6, “Air, Water, and Land Resources Quality”, states, “To maintain and improve 
the quality of the air, water and land resources of the state. 
 
The Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) has acknowledged the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan as being consistent with the statewide planning goals.  The 
proposed text amendments create a development standard that will buffer land uses and 
prevent or mitigate off-site impacts that could lead to conflicting impacts upon air resources.   

8 
 



PTA-15-01 Marijuana Facilities 
DRAFT Analysis and Findings 
January 30, 2015 
 
 
 
This Goal is satisfied 
 
Article XI, Section 2 of the Oregon Constitution. 
 
The City of Tualatin has “home rule” authority over the civil affairs of its City. The City’s 
regulations of marijuana business are consistent with this home rule authority, as well as state 
land use laws.  
 
 
Applicable Provisions of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Act 
 
Initially adopted by State ballot measure in 1998, the Oregon Medical Marijuana Act (ORS 
475) governs the production, distribution, and use of medical marijuana within the State of 
Oregon.  In March 2014, the Oregon Legislature amended ORS 475 under Senate Bill 1531 
which restates the already existing ability of local governments to impose reasonable 
regulations on the operation of medical marijuana facilities under home rule authority. 
 
SECTION 2. Notwithstanding ORS 633.738, the governing body of a city or county may 
adopt ordinances that impose reasonable regulations on the operation of medical 
marijuana facilities registered, or applying for registration, under ORS 475.314 that are 
located in the area subject to the jurisdiction of the city or county. For purposes of this 
section, “reasonable regulations” includes reasonable limitations on the hours during 
which a medical marijuana facility may be operated, reasonable limitations on where a 
medical marijuana facility may be located within a zone described in ORS 475.314 
(3)(a) and reasonable conditions on the manner in which a medical marijuana facility 
may dispense medical marijuana. 
 
FINDING:  The proposed amendments establish reasonable restrictions on hours of 
operation, allowed locations, and design and operational requirements to prevent or mitigate 
potential offsite community impacts.  Senate Bill 1531 does not define “reasonable” therefore 
the City has relied on existing regulations in the Tualatin Development Code and proposed 
regulations from other cities and counties in the state.  The proposed amendments allow 
facilities in three manufacturing zones located in the western portion of the City.  Proposed 
language is included as Exhibit B and a map with 3,000 foot buffers from residential districts 
is included as Exhibit C.   
 
Based on the findings above, staff finds that the proposed text amendment is consistent with 
the Oregon Medical Marijuana Act. 
 
Applicable Provisions of the Control, Regulation, and Taxation of Marijuana and 
Industrial Hemp Act (Measure 91) 
 

9 
 



PTA-15-01 Marijuana Facilities 
DRAFT Analysis and Findings 
January 30, 2015 
 
 
On November 4, 2014 Oregon voters approved ballot Measure 91 (Control, Regulation, and 
Taxation of Marijuana and Industrial Hemp Act) to legalize the use and possession of 
recreations marijuana on July 1, 2015.  The law also directs the Oregon Liquor Control 
Commission to tax, license, and regulate recreational marijuana.  Section 59 of the act 
specifically authorizes local governments seeking to impose reasonable time, place, and 
manner restrictions in order to address adverse community impacts. 
 
SECTION 59. Authority of cities and counties over establishments that serve 
marijuana. (1) Cities and counties may adopt reasonable time, place and manner 
regulations of the nuisance aspects of establishments that sell marijuana to consumers if 
the city or county makes specific findings that the establishment would cause adverse 
effects to occur. 
 
FINDING:  The proposed amendments establish reasonable restrictions on hours of 
operation, allowed locations, and design and operational requirements to prevent or mitigate 
potential offsite community impacts.  The City regulations are consistent with existing 
reasonable regulations in the Tualatin Development Code and reasonable regulations relating 
to marijuana, including regulations from other cities and counties in the state.  The proposed 
amendments allow facilities in three manufacturing zones located in the western portion of 
the City.  Proposed language is included as Exhibit B and a map with 3,000 foot buffers from 
residential districts is included as Exhibit C.   
 
As described below and in the purpose statement of the proposed text, the intent of proposed 
amendments is to prevent or mitigate possible adverse community impacts associated with 
marijuana facilities.  These include but are not limited to the following: 
 

(1) Protect the general health, safety, property, and welfare of the public; 

(2) Balance the right of individuals to produce and access marijuana and marijuana de-
rivatives consistent with state law, with the need to minimize adverse impacts to 
nearby properties that may result from the production, storage, distribution, sale, 
and/or use of marijuana and derivatives; 

(3) Prevent or reduce criminal activity that my result in harm to persons or property; 

(4) Prevent or reduce diversion of state-licensed marijuana and marijuana derivatives to 
minors; and 

(5) Minimize impacts to the City’s public safety services by reducing calls for ser-
vice.  

 
Based on the findings above, staff finds that the proposed code text amendment is consistent 
with Measure 91 (Control, Regulation, and Taxation of Marijuana and Industrial Hemp Act). 
 
Ballot Measure 56 Notice to property owners of hearing on certain zone change; form 
of notice; exceptions; reimbursement of cost. (ORS 227.186) 

10 
 



PTA-15-01 Marijuana Facilities 
DRAFT Analysis and Findings 
January 30, 2015 
 
 
 
Section (3) Except as provided in subsection (6) of this section, at least 20 days but not 
more than 40 days before the date of the first hearing on an ordinance that proposes to 
amend an existing comprehensive plan or any element thereof, or to adopt a new com-
prehensive plan, a city shall cause a written individual notice of a land use change to be 
mailed to each owner whose property would have to be rezoned in order to comply with 
the amended or new comprehensive plan if the ordinance becomes effective. 
 
Section (4) At least 20 days but not more than 40 days before the date of the first hear-
ing on an ordinance that proposes to rezone property, a city shall cause a written indi-
vidual notice of a land use change to be mailed to the owner of each lot or parcel of 
property that the ordinance proposes to rezone. 
 
(9) For purposes of this section, property is rezoned when the city: 

(a) Changes the base zoning classification of the property; or 
(b) Adopts or amends an ordinance in a manner that limits or prohibits land us-
es previously allowed in the affected zone. 

 
FINDING: Measure 56 requires local jurisdictions to notify property owners when a change 
to a comprehensive plan or zoning ordinance could result in a rezone to property.  As stated 
above, ORS 227.186 (9) defines rezone as a change to the base zoning classification or a 
change that limits or prohibits previously allowed land uses.  The proposed amendments in 
this application will not change the base zoning classification of any properties.  The City of 
Tualatin does not have a zoning ordinance but instead relies on Planning Districts to 
implement land use.  No Planning Districts are proposed to change as a result of these 
amendments.  Additionally, the proposed amendments do not limit or prohibit currently 
allowed land uses.  Marijuana facilities and marijuana uses are currently not permitted in any 
Planning District. See, e.g., Tualatin Municipal Code Chapter 9-08. The amendments will 
actually create new permitted uses in three existing Planning Districts: Light Manufacturing, 
General Manufacturing and Manufacturing Business Park. 
 
Based on the findings above, the City finds that the proposed amendments will not change 
the base zoning or limit or prohibit currently or previously allowed land uses in the affected 
Planning Districts and therefore a Measure 56 notice is not required.   
 
The PTA complies with Goals 1, 2 and 6, and it complies with the Oregon Medical Marijuana 
Act, Measure 91 and Measure 56. Criterion “6” is met. 
 
7. Granting the amendment is consistent with the Metropolitan Service District’s Urban 
Growth Management Functional Plan. 
 
Title 4: Industrial and Other Employment Areas 
 
3.07.430 Protection of Industrial Areas 

11 
 



PTA-15-01 Marijuana Facilities 
DRAFT Analysis and Findings 
January 30, 2015 
 
 
 
Cities and counties shall review their land use regulations and revise them, if necessary, 
to include measures to limit new buildings for retail commercial uses—such as stores 
and restaurants—and retail and professional services that cater to daily customers—
such as financial, insurance, real estate, legal, medical and dental offices—in order to 
ensure that they serve primarily the needs of workers in the area. One such measure 
shall be that new buildings for stores, branches, agencies or other outlets for these retail 
uses and services shall not occupy more than 5,000 square feet of sales or service area in 
a single outlet, or multiple outlets that occupy more than 20,000 square feet of sales or 
service area in a single building or in multiple buildings that are part of the same 
development project, with the following exceptions:  
 

1. Within the boundaries of a public use airport subject to a facilities master 
plan, customary airport uses, uses that are accessory to the travel-related and 
freight movement activities of airports, hospitality uses, and retail uses 
appropriate to serve the needs of the traveling public; and  
 

2. Training facilities whose primary purpose is to provide training to meet 
industrial needs. 

 
FINDING:  The Oregon Medical Marijuana Act, ORS 475.314, requires medical marijuana 
facilities locate in land zoned for commercial, industrial or mixed-use or agricultural land. 
The City’s proposed amendments require a 3,000 foot buffer from residential Planning 
Districts.  This buffer eliminates the ability for Marijuana Facilities to locate in commercial 
Planning Districts, and the City does not have agricultural land use designations.  The 
remaining land that is eligible for Marijuana Facilities as shown on Metro’s Employment and 
Industrial Areas Map as of January 8, 2014 is Industrial Area.   
 
We believe it is acceptable to locate Marijuana Facilities on land identify by Metro as 
Industrial for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed amendment limits the size of each facility to 3,000 square feet 
which is below the 5,000 square foot limitation in Metro Code 3.07.430.  
Additionally, the Oregon Medical Marijuana Act and the City’s proposed 
amendments prohibit co-location of retail and grow sites which means that at no 
time could there be more than 3,000 square feet of any type of facility on a parcel 
of land identified as Industrial Area. 
 

2. The proposed amendments also establish a minimum distance of 2,000 feet 
between Marijuana Facilities which also limits the possibility of too much 
industrial land being converted to a retail use. 

 
3. The proposed amendments define Marijuana Facilities as “a commercial or public 

use or structure where marijuana is produced, processed, wholesaled, retailed, 

12 
 



PTA-15-01 Marijuana Facilities 
DRAFT Analysis and Findings 
January 30, 2015 
 
 

distributed, transferred, sold or consumed and registered with the Oregon Health 
Authority (OHA) or the Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC).”  It is 
possible that not all Marijuana Facilities will be retail and some may be 
manufacturing uses that fit in a traditional industrial area. 

 
Based on the above findings, the City finds that the proposed amendments continue to protect 
land identified as industrial by Metro for industrial and employment purposes, and therefore, 
the amendments comply with Title 4 Industrial and Other Employment Areas.   
 
The PTA complies with Metro’s Urban Growth Management Functional Plan. Criterion “7” 
is met. 
 
8.  Granting the amendment is consistent with Level of Service F for the p.m. peak hour 
and E for the one-half hour before and after the p.m. peak hour for the Town Center 
2040 Design Type (TDC Map 9-4), and E/E for the rest of the 2040 Design Types in the 
City's planning area. 
 
Because the PTA does not relate to vehicle trip generation, Criterion “8” is not applicable. 

13 
 



PTA 15-01 Marijuana Regulations

Tualatin Planning Commission Recommendation
February 19, 2015



Background

Update on Marijuana Regulation2

• City Council provided direction to staff at a City 
Council Work Session on January 26, 2015

• Staff sent DLCD notice of the proposed code 
changes January 30, 2015

• Planning Commission recommendation to City 
Council on February 19, 2015



Regulations Overview

Update on Marijuana Regulation3

 Definitions - Chapter 31
 Permitted use in ML, MG and MBP - Chapters 60, 61 and 

64 
 New Marijuana Facility Regulations - New Chapter 80
 Marijuana Facilities
 Edible Marijuana
 Butane Extraction
 Homegrown Marijuana



Draft Code Definitions

Update on Marijuana Regulation4

 Marijuana

 Marijuana, edible

 Marijuana extract

 Marijuana facilities

 Marijuana, homegrown



Draft Code- Development Standards

Update on Marijuana Regulation5

 Comply with all applicable State requirements

 Limited hours to 10:00 am and 8:00pm

 Primary entrances located on street-facing facades and clearly visible from 
a public or private street.

 Located inside a permanent building 

 Prohibit location within a trailer, shipping container, cargo container, tent, 
motor vehicle or drive-through marijuana facilities

 Prohibit outdoor storage of merchandise, plants or other materials

 Confine all marijuana odors and other objectionable odors to levels 
undetectable at the property line.



Draft Code- Development Standards

Update on Marijuana Regulation6

 Facilities allowed in:
 Light Manufacturing
 General Manufacturing
 Manufacturing Business Park

 3,000’ buffer from the following:
 Residential Planning District and residential uses
 Schools- as defined in Chapter 31
 City Parks - identified in the City Charter
 Libraries

 Retail and dispensaries shall not co-locate with other marijuana facilities

 2,000’ buffer between all facilities

 Facilities limited to 3,000 square feet in size



Buffer from Residential and Schools 

Update on Marijuana Regulation7



Draft Code – Development Standards

Update on Marijuana Regulation8

 Edible Marijuana standards
 Individually wrapped when produced
 Child-resistant packaging
 Prohibit packaging attractive to children or imitates candy
 Clear warning label must note:

 Contents contain marijuana
 Contents are not a food product

 Emphasize that the product is to be kept away from children

 The sale of edibles must be behind a commercial counter or in 
an enclosed case.



Draft Code – Development Standards

Update on Marijuana Regulation9

 Butane extraction is prohibited

 Homegrown Marijuana Standards
 Comply with state law.
 Homemade extracts are prohibited
 Homegrown plants;

 Prohibited in the front yard

 Must be fully screened from view
 Must be 10 feet away from all property lines and 25 feet away from 

adjacent residences 



Next Steps

Update on Marijuana Regulation10

February:

Draft Code 
Language

March:

Public Hearing 
+ Ordinance 

Adoption

May: 
Ordinance in 

Effect



Discussion and Questions

Update on Marijuana Regulation11


	Agenda
	_1757
	ATT_TPC Minutes 1.15.15
	1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:
	2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
	3. COMMUNICATION FROM THE PUBLIC (NOT ON THE AGENDA:
	4. ACTION ITEMS:
	5. COMMUNICATION FROM CITY STAFF
	A. Update on the Regulation of Marijuana Facilities
	6.     FUTURE ACTION ITEMS
	7.      ANNOUNCEMENTS/PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION
	8.       ADJOURNMENT

	TPC 2014 Annual Report
	ATT_101. Tualatin Planning Commission 2014 Annual Report
	Nic Herriges
	2014 ANNUAL REPORT OF THE TUALATIN
	PLANNING COMMISSION
	BACKGROUND
	CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT AND INPUT

	PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION ITEMS

	PTA 15-01 Marijuana Facilities
	ATT_101. Marijuana Facilities Map
	ATT_102. Draft Proposed Code Language
	Section 60.020 Permitted Uses.
	Section 60.021 Restrictions on Permitted Uses in ML.
	Section 61.020 Permitted Uses.
	Section 61.021 Restrictions on Permitted Uses.
	Section 64.020 Permitted Uses.
	Section 64.021 Restrictions on Permitted Uses.

	ATT_103. Draft Analysis and Findings
	PTA-15-01:  ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS
	MARIJUANA FACILITIES

	ATT_104. Presentation

